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FAIDSTOKE CROSS, OKTARIO, CLNADA

The Village of laidstone Cross is situated at the intersection
of §o. 3 ané Fo. 114 highways, in the townshivn of Sandwich South,
County of Zssex, Province of Onterio, Dominion of Canada.

When the early settlers first came to this part of the
country, it was 21l dense Iforest of very large virgin timbder.

It took years of hard latour to root out the itrees, so as the
sun could shine in so they could grow grain. In those first
early days a great deal of valuable timber was durned %o clear
the land. Around the blackened stumps, they used a drag drawn by
oxen if they had one to cover up the seed sown by hand.

. These early settlers broke up the soil with hoes. Cut the
grain with a scythe or cradle. Threshed it on a hard surface or
tarafloor with a flail which weas made of two hardwood round
sticks fastened together by a leather thong. Then vour the grain
from one container to another in the wind to seperate the grain
from the chaff., They would either have to grind it by hand mills
or walk to Sandwich a distance of about fifteen miles. QCarry a
bag of grain on zheir backs to the mills along Detroit River. '
Zave it ground inte flour, then carry the flour btack home
lightened only by the Toll of the millers fee of flour.

When these early setitlers arrived the first trhing they hzad
to do was o build themselves a log home. The walls were chirnked
together, long splinters were wedged vetween the logs To keep
the'elements out. The roof was of snlit logs or tozrds sawei Ty
hand.
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Whenever these early settlers had to go to Sendwich they followed
this blazed trail which was only a foot path. In places whers
the ground was low and swamdy, trees were cut down and lzid side
by side to keep the israveller from being mired. In these swanpy
Dlaces they kad to carry their shoes and jump from one log %o
another,

These hax»dy early pioneers usually nad good health and were
sTtrong. They wors nome woven clothing, Taeir Ffurniture was
crade home made. In time they rode in carts, light waggons or
sleizkh, often hand made. ey had no luxurious of any kind,
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Unless the abundance of wild game and Tish could be czalled such.

Yet in spite of their hardships, they lived happy contented

lives. They were always sociable with their few neighbours.
Always ready anc willing to help each other with logging bees and
barn raisings ané building of their homes.

In due time they were visited by a travelling preaciner who
by almost increditle toil made his way to the "Sheep" scatitered
in the wilderness. Then in a rude log cabin, the few settlers
gathered together to listen to a sermon and pray togetker, have
their children baptized or other solomn rites preformed.

0f s2ducation there was none. The few seitiers were too Tusy
or too poor o ke atle to nave & teacner 1o sernd their ckildren
to school. Later years the Government tried to help 2 little.

4s we have ‘already told the story of our ancesiors Joseph
Bennett with his tride EZlizabteth Collins, coming out Jrom Engleand
after their marriasge and settling on 100 acres of land in dense
forest on the southwest corner of Cross roads of Indian trails.
Ee tuilt a home of logs in 1834, 1t was this~Josedhn Tennett named
the village "Maidstone Cross", after the town of Maidstone Cross{
Zngland.

In 1835 brothers of Elizabeth, Stephen and George Collins
also came out from England. Stephen took up land atout 3 miles
west of the village aldng the Indian trail., Later Gecrge married
a Sarah Nicholson of Detroit and they settled in Oxford County
Woodstock, Onterio. Then 2 sister Sarzh Collins also came %o

Canada. She meade her home with her brother George and never narri
In 184S Charles Collins the youngest Lrotker with his Eride
Zlizabeth Richards came over and they also settled jusi east of

the village in dense forest.
Stephen Ccllins of Headley England came over to Zzanada.

in 1835 he married a Fiss Mara Rhodes, They svent their lives on
the farm west of the village. Later years a big iwo story brick
home was built. The youngest son, George Zurtoxn, remzirel o1 the
"nlline arm and toox care of nis parenits i1xn later years., Zis
son and daughters remained on the farm after ris deaih. The son
Stanley died also tkhree of the daughters., Just regent

+

farn has been so0lid out of the Collins name.
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ELRLIEST SETTLERS ARQCUKD RAIDSTORE

- Following is a 1list of earliest settlers of Maidstone Cross
Oniario and surrounding Community......
Joseph Eennett, Stephen Collins, Charles Collins, Peter Delisle,
Joseph Farough, Peter Farough, John Faroughk, Joseph Farough Jr.
Fichael Farough, Glodemere Farough, Nicholas Farough, ILawrence
Farough, Charles Farough, Charles McCloskey, Wm. Hicky, Abraham
Cole, Thomas Collins, George Collins, George Collins Jr., Richard
Halford, Robert Little, Charles Little, Hugh Lennon, John Twomey,
Denis Collins, Cornelius Collins, John Greary, Joseph Totten,
Kichael Kavanagh, Robt. Watson, John Greaves 3r., James Deechan,
Rovt. Shuel, Martin Burke, Thomas Conroy, Henry irnold, Charles
Delisle, John B. Delisle, Josepr Cock, Timothy HMoynaham, Patrick
Barrett, Joseph Frysinger Sr., Joseph Frysinger Jr., John Ellis,
Samuel =1llis, Thomas Ellis, Wm. Ellis, Patrick Sexton, James
Hoolihan, Joan Driscoll, John Eyland, Charles Carron, Alexander
O'Neil, Edward DBurke, Jemes Cakill, John Lyons, James Ward, James
Devlin, John Costigan, Wm. Morton, Garrett Barr Y Patrick Lane,
Andrew McClann, Charles Bunn, John Dally, Thomas Ferry, Nicholas
Dixon, Thomas Higgans, Charles Cole, Jokn Daniher, Michzel Donavon,

-

herles Rounding, John Lolden, Tiromas Powers, Eéverd Zzton, Join

Sextor, Jeremish ILynchk, John Taxey, Micrael Savage, Jenis Downing,
Michael Allen, Lawrence Xane, Wm. Kane, Denis Farrettl, Peter
:ePnarlin, Wm. Phillips, Robert Fairburn, Patrick Gallzagher,
Ignatius Halford, Thomeas cClossiey, Wm. kc€loskey, Frank McCloskey,
James rliis, william Robinson, David Thoms, Wm. Frithk, John
Greaves Jr., James %Wilson, EBEdward Kendrick, William Croit, James
Delisle.

Once an Indian Trzil, now our dighway No. 3. When teaming
began, this Indian Trail had to be wideneé so it was built into
a plank or cordroy road. The logs had to be split by hand end
laid side by sicde. TFor a number of years was called the riank
22d, As these logs and planks wore out they had to e renleces.
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I have not been able to get the exact date the stage coach
czme through laidstone Cross---soon after 1850. It weat from
Leamington to Sandwich. ‘

Jemima "Collins" Ferough, told of how the drivers would stop
at every Inn, change horses, get a glass of whiskey, sometimes
they would get very drunk, run and whip the horses.

Fr. Gordon Wigle drove the stage coach in 1860, He moved
west in 1888. The last of the sfage coaches disappeared about
end of 18th century

To keep this plank road in repair, they buil 11 gates.

There were four zstes Letwesn Dssex Lentre znd just Ttejyond
Mdcastle. L charge was macde to pass through ftrese gztes,

The setilers were cnarged according to the leoad they had on, o©

H

+

itre number of oxen or horses drawing the lozd.- & round trip to
Sandwica through these gztes cost as much as £5 centis about 2

ays wage.

The money collected at these toll gates were to te used to
repair the road. 4s time weni on the xeepers did not xeep the
road repaired, so cne night, some of the settlers from Essex
went through removed the keepers belongings, and set fire to the
gates and burnec them. Then as the planks wore out, the road
was resurfaced with grevel. Patrick kciuliife wes keeper of ihe
t0ll zates at kaidstone Cross in theose early days.

m

oW TEE INDILN TRALD Wi3 NAVED TALIZCT ROLD

Thomas Taltot wes Tern in Ireiand. ‘when ne wes twenty
one years old, he came *to Cznada in 1871, T yser Ye

went te Newark zs secretary to Governor John Gra

Turirg this time, he had ar oprertunity oi travelling to Detrcit.
Te wes very 11pressei, Loved Thiz mcost Soutaern part of

restern Omiarzis. o 1794, nhe returned to EZxngland, served zs an

ermy officer in the war between Eritain and France. 'wWhen the

wer was over, he agein reiurned to CTanadz to take up farsing.

Za wavked alone clearing land of timber. e again returned o

Ingland. 1In 1803 securad z grant of 5000 acres of land to stars

z setilement, where St. Thomas is now located.
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He divided the lané into 50 scre farms and for each farm

E

granted to a setiler, Telbot was to receive 200 acres oI lan

(]

Bventually ne would receive 20,000 zcreas of land instead of 5,000
zlong Laxe Zrie. It was all very dense foresi--no NOnies Or roads.
It was in 1835, ne started To plan a rcad Irom Yora 1o
,indsor. Then the war of 1812 broxe out. He bescame & Coionel in.
this war. His Settlement was plundered and burned., 4fter zhe
was he resorted his settlement, and again continued the construction
of his road. By 1837 this first road stretched from Niagara to
Vindscr.
The first road was a cordroy road. Logs were cut and iaid

n
-
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by side. _
Colonel Talbot died in 188%--sixty years alter ne Iirst named
Poxrt Talvot,

This Ffirst road was named Talbot road, afier Colornel Taldbel.
In EZssex County we zlso have anorth and south Tzalbct road, one
nile north and souta of the main Telbot rcad. It was in 1924
Taltot Road was paved ana became our No. 3 highway.

‘The other Indian irall a2t the Cross roads.at Mazidstone Cross
wWas named the Kiddle Road. t was bplazed through the forest for
the soldiers. When the road was f{ive miles south of haidstone
Cross, the boss was given the money to pay the men. e cleared
out with the money, and the men never received the 1r TEY .

So the road that was to nave gone througnh to Amnerstburg wes never
ccmpleted, It was a very tad clay road. 1In spring it was most
imtassable. 3Zut in due time it was also gravel suriaced. In
parts of Essex County, inere were plenty of good grsvel dits.

In 1925 this Fiddle road was also built into 2 rard surfaced
road znd wes nzned sing's Zighwaey wno. 2. A few yesrs laver ths
vuster was chznged o No. 68 Highway and the mile between 98 nignwsy
and No. 3 highway was given the number of 114.

Today there is a through highway Jo. 401, 2lso czlled the
ltecDonald-Cartier ! 1ghWay coming into ¥Windsor, Cntario between
g e2st zarcss Onterio.

3
Today 1572 Issex County has = network of gcod hard surfaced
ra= county.

M

nighways and paved and gravelled roads over ihe ent
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Denis and Eznneh Collins of Ireland came to the township of
Sendwich in the VWestern District on July 18,1848, Taese Collins'
have no connection with the Collins' from Englend that are-our

Ancestors. .

He bought 100 acres of land and duilt his log home on the
South-Eas?t corner of the Cross roads.

Mr. Denis Collins was the first settler on that corner,

He was a waggon maker by trade. He built his shop just east of
his. house.

‘ Cornelious Collins, brother of Denis was a tlacksmith, He
Bbuilt his shop east of the waggon shop. Denis Collins cleared nis
land of timber. In 1872 kr. Rush ovought a lot off the Collins
farm and built a2 svore.

Lfter the death of Denis Collins, his son Jeremiel carried

on ferming. Ee built an Inn east of the house. ir. Colilins kert
a good Inn and made many Iriends. £5 scon 23 Teawling sterwed s

the roads were very bed, they would have to put up &t the Inn on
their way to Sandwich to rest their oxen or horses. '

At Jeremiah's death, he gave his ferm to his son Jeremizh.
The Inn, shops and store were all torn down, and went back to
farming land. 4s time progressed Jerry Farmed ané run & dairy
route, and in turn at his death, his sons continued To farm.
Today the frontege a2long No. 3 Highway is 2ll buili up with new
and modern homes. Thne farm is still in the Collins neme, Jerry's
son Pernard and family living on the farm, 1972

Rev. Father (harles Collins, son of late Jeremizh zné inn
"Kavanaugh" Collins was ordained in 8t. Michale's Seminary saug,
15,1899, Zorn in the Village of Maidstone Cross Jec. 2,1874, a=
studied for the Preisthood. He taught for the EFascilian Order
nearly 48 years. Ye endeared himself to countless students,
teaching as far south as Waco, Texas. Ee was blessed with a
jovial personality. Fade many friexds. Died June 2,71247.

In 1874 when the tresent Catholic Church was tuilt, Lr.

"

Charles Zavanaugh -ought Ths 0ld Jztaclic Churen Just anorth of
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£Iter the blacksmith shop in the cld Cztholic Church we
torn down, Ir. Patrick Donavon erected an Inn. In later ¥ear
vr. Hayes, L.r. Peiter Sullivan and kr, Charles Little were 211
managers in turn. Then in 1810 Kr. Peter Sullivan Xext & rocning
house, and had a grocery store in the 0li Szr Zsor.

in 1927 Lr, ilicheel Jchn and lr, Georgs Ceorge “ougns ihs
0ld Wuilding. It wes divided into two homes, and moved norih of
the corner, where the old Catholic Church stood, cn what is now
No. 114 highway. A large brick garage and Service Station was
erected by Mr. John and Kr. George. In a few years was sold to
Mr. Thomas Brown. Named 3rown's Service Station. In a2 few years
that building was torn down, and the proverty taken over Ty tae
highway.

On tne ¥orin-East Corner of the Crossrcad, in 1857, a ¥r.
kcGee nad ah Inn built., Er. Seaton was the first manzger fsllowing
him were ¥r. 3ain, Mr. Munro and khr. Webd. It was around 1€20
when that Inn was torn down. _

At one time all three of these Inn's were carrying on business
at’ same time. All had Bar. Rooms. )

On Jenuary 4,1910, Sandwich South Townshkip voted on ILocal
Option.

There were 365 votes cast; 111 wet, 254 dry, and has never
been alowed to come back again'--1972.

The first sitore was opened in the Viilage znd owned ty
».r. Micnhael Twomey about 1838, It was located 2 short distance
west ol the Cross Jozds where the James iictuliffe heé his Jarm,

Charles znd Retecca "koran" kclloskey came from Ireland in
1847 and settled in haldstone Cross in 1855, Ir. KcCloskey
a tailor and ran a shop in the Village. He is the grandfather
of 2all the i.cCloskey's in the sectioa.

Zis son ITinon
siith in the Village Fr. Corneluis Collins was the first one in
1848, Thomas hcCloskey carried on business in the Village until
his deeath zbout 1885.

. A + G o e spmeo =mn = A T e
s wes z vlacksmith. EHz waz Ths ssosngd tlzo-d

»
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His son Charles had learned blacksmithing from nis father.
He toox over the business in 1885 when only sixteen years of age
He continued to blacksmith in his father's shop just 2 shors
distance west of the Crossroads. 1t was most interesting when
we went to the Village to stand and waich him shoeing & horse,
or heating a piece of iron red hot and shaping it.

Frank McCloskey, 2 brother of Thomas, was a waggon maker,
and an Auctioneer in Meidstone. He made 2 waggon for John 3B,
rarough about 1875. Le gave that waggon to his son Albert
Farough. It was well made and well taken care of--was in use
seventy-five years.

This waggon shop was Jjust west of the blacksmith shop, where
the l.ichael John Store is now located.

L+ Frank's death his son Thomas Tuilt a grocery store of
brick, right wnere the 0ld waggon shop stood. He carried on &
good business for 2 number of years. In 1915 he sold this store
to My, Ficheel conn. After Lr. Jchn's death, Mrs. John has
continued to carry on -the grocery business in 1672, + is the
only grocery store lef< in the Villege l.aidstore Jross.

Tincent Mclloskey son of uameé incCloskey erected an elevat5r
and chopping mill in 1209. This elevator was located just norih
of the liichigan Ceniral Railway Station. Xe ran his business
until 1927 when he sold it to kr. Ross C. Flood oi Zarrow.

The Ross €. Grain Comrany is one of the oldest dziing back
to 18%6 when his grandfather staried tusiness in Harrow Cntaric.
In 1931 Ross sold his

elevator and mill from the l.eCloskey btrothers of raidstone Cross

df
business in Earrow Ontario, bought the

and moved his family to the Village.

Ee was not long in gaining respect in his business ability
and soon built up 2 growing business for the farming community.
Llater he was joined in the business ty ais four sons Jonzld,
Jzmes, Ross C. Jr. and Cnarles. ZProm their growing business,
people began to complain of smoke Irom turning corn cobs. T9

[§]
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- " - et 3 S e D mda® mne iam o el -
combas This Doiuticha, an alr iaductlicn was ingtiallad &

o $20,000,
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in incineratsr was Lul ne in area rising o0 feeti in
1662, A4Llso lzrge sil

0
08 were utuilt for soring and Irying grtii.
1zndlie 1,00C,0
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grein annually, mostly
wheat, corrn znd sayabeans. Zesides feeds which are ground and
wixed to specifications.
On Tuesday, Kovember 7, 1967, a $7100,000 fire burned
the mill and Facilities. Zliemes rose 200 feet high. Jzmes was

a%le to save the office records.

Six vehicles were sent Irom =ssex, [.aidstone, Serndwich Soutn,

Sandwich West and Anderdon Townships to fight the fire.

Tire destroyed the mill on the same site in 1930/

¥r, Doss . Plood died Jzn. 28,1862, The sons continue
to carry on the business in Laidstone Corss Ontario in the sams
Tine tusiness way as their fatner managsd it.

Mr. George Grondin owned and ran another feed =znd chopping
mill in the Village in 1952. _

Mr. Milton Eartley of Sandwich South now owns &nd runs that
mill.

POST SERVICE 1IN THT VILLAGE OF RAIDSTONI CROSS

The fiest Post Office in the Village was opened in 1838,
lr., John Twomey was the first Post haster. &Le kept itne Post
Office in his home in the village of laidstone Cross Just z short
distance from the Crossroads.

Nr., Joseph Bennett, who was the Iirst settlexr o settle on
his 100 acres of land on the south west corner of %he Indisan
trail in 1834, He gave the village its name. In 18533 he built

his oldest son Charles, who was then 19 years o0ld, a storehouse

)]

on his farm,
Fr. Charles Bennetit became the seccnd Posi l.aster. The
Post Office was in his store. 'when he was 21 years old, hLe

married Susan D. Whitson of Znglish and Scoich decent. To this
union was born five children.
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Mr. Thomes Rush came to Haidstone Cross in 1872. He built
a store on the 0ld Denis Collins farm, on the south-east corner
of the cross roads. This kr. Denis Collins came from Ireland and
was no relative oI the Callins' from IZngland that are our
ancestors.

ltr. Thomas Rush was the third Post Masier in the village.
The Post Office was in his store.

On Feb. 1,1873 Mr. Thomas Rush moved to Zssex Centre and
opened the first place of business--a general store. That same
year Mr. Rush became the first Post Master in Essex Centre.

He continued as Past Master until his death in 1910.

He was also one of the first councillors in Essex Centre.

Just north-west of the corssroads kFr. Thomas koran tought
a lot and carpenter hecDonald tuilt lir. Thomas Moran a general
store and home combined in 1873. So in 1873 he became the fourth
Post Master of Laidstone Cross., Mr. Moran sold this building *
Mr., James Gerard. He moved it fto Essex Centre.

Fxr. Moran then had a building built closer to the cross
roads. He carried on a general store and Post Oifice. Sixteen
years later Mr. Moran failed in business.

Kr. Ignatius Ealford bought this twilding and business zand
continued a genexzl store.

On Octobver ©,1889 kr. EZalford became the fifth Post Haster.
He held that office for 53 years until his death in 1242,

¥Mr, and Mmrs., Ealford were highly respected citizens. Thaey

nad a family of seven--five daughfers ané two sons. FEKe successiully

carried on his business and Post Oirfice.
4% his death he left the business to his youngest daughier
kary, Mrs. John Walker, also the Post Office.

While Mr. Halford was Post kaster, our Parcel Post Siystem
znd Rural Route fystem =startel in hzlistone lross Onterin
Jaly 4,1212,

Tie Firct Jourisrs Wergee—-

Mx. George Gerar
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i.r. George Gerard held that office for 35 years. Kr. Thomas
Shannahan took over R.R. #1 znd carried on for next 25 years.

Following him kx. John %Wzlker was R. R. #1 courier, until
his death in 1§70.

hr, Paul Chairmaid then took over the route and cerrying on
in 1972.

Fr. wWilliam Lloyd made his home with Lr., and krs. Albert
Greaves. He was courier for R. R. #2 for many years.

Mr. Ernest Gerard was second courier for R. R, #2. At his
death, his son Walter took over.

The first courier for Rural Route 3 was kr. Walker Grant.
The second ccurier was lkr. Milford Dawson. Following him kr.
John Walker was courier for R. R. #3,

Then ir. Arnold sxcell wes courier for 2urzl Zoute 3 fron
Jan. 1250 until Sept. 20,1908.

Il'r. Ignatius Ealford also built a fine large nome, west of
his store and Post Office. At his death in 1942 his daughter
ary "Halford" Walker, became Mkaidstone Cross Sixth Post i“istress,
and like her father served the public well, both in the Post '
Office and the store until her deazth in 1968:

Fr., Arnold Axcell was born Cct. 20,1912 in Southend on Sea
Essex County, England., Eis father was filled in %orld War 1.
Arnold was brought to Canada when young. Ee wes 9 years old
when he came to make his home with rFoster Parents Albert and
ELinnie rFarcugh. In his youth went to schsol and worked on the
farm. Took ar zctive part in haidstonrne United Crhurech work and
community work. Later years visited his mother in Zrglané tefore
sne cled. '

On Jan. 6,1940 Arnold Joined the Royal Canadian Zegiment
in London Ontario. He served in England, France, North ifrics,
Sicily and Itely. Ee held Rank of 3Sargeant.

January 18,1643, he married liss Jessie 2llen Gillies of
Glasgow Scotland, daughter of Lir. and lirs., &ngus Gillies of

Glasgow Scotland.
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Their first daughter was born Oct. 13,1943 in Clasgow
Secotland, Shona :zaron iAxcell.

Sergeant Axcell was wounded at the Sangro Line in Ita
Dec. 8,1943 by a 4" mortar shell, left elbow broken, spent
months in 18%th General Hospital outside Kaples., Arm had to be
broken twice and still short. Sent back te¢ London, Ontario

1y
5

May 1944 to Westminister Hosvpital for Therany, discharged Cct., 1844,

Sergezant Axcell received nis zonourabdle dischargs July 1243,
Zis wife Jessies and daughter Shona came fo Canada,
Arnold bought 30 acres of land, built a home and garage on the

“alden road, two miles south of haidstone Cross, Ontario

4 second dauvghter, Moira Ann, was born Nov. 2,1%50,.

Arnold bvecame Clerk of Sandwich South Township dan. 1¢50 to
Feb, 1960, when clerx 2nd Trezsurer office was combined and Eert
Eedford took over that office. Arnpoléd wes mail ccurier 1€ years.

On Sept. .21,1888, IFr. Arnoléd A, Axcell beczme the 7Tth
Post kaster in kaidstone Cross Ontario.

The o0l1d building that kr. Thomas Ioran built as a generel
store and Post 0fiice, later owned by Mr, Ignetius kalford,
continued to be = store and Post Office feor 97 years, was torn
down July 196S%. A fine new modern Post Office built and opened
Dec. 1,1988. I.eidstone continues to have 3 Rural Routes, zdrrx.
SC0 natrons.

It . kes 162 lock boxes, is fitfed with 2ll necessary uiodera
eguipnent, such as sorting <atles, stanping tatle, filing catines,
2dding machine, narcel racks, bag racsI, if.aslilz maz cutolils Cooz
ToXes, 5:&;; veniing Liciins, air conciticning, elecTric Ttaselozxd
heating, tile floors, washrooms and & pressure pump. Arncld is
the Zirst mason to hold the office of Post laster. Xe also has
tae honour of bteing the first Post kaster in this rnew Post 0ifice

of Dec. 1,19262%, Faldstone Cross Ontaris Canada,

R&-}dréd Cetcbar <o, 1977 +he day Ar Lurned 65
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®pllowing the Civil War in the United States, between the
¥orth and Soutk, many Southernmers took refuge in Canada. Some
0F these made raids in Rorder

ot

owns and villages.
These raids created a bad Feeling towards fJanada when the
war was over in 1888, The R i Treaty exnired, tuae Tuitsed
States Governneat Is o] t

fanada also suffered from the ill will of the American
Government in another way.

On June 1, 1866, a body of ruffians called Fenians belonging
+0 a secret society, havirng as its object the separation of Ireland

from Great Britain, crossed the border and took possession of

[ - b o : do o -
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by

01d Fort Erie., Civilians roluniesr

in

zra gad neld ihsm bacsk until Colonel Peacock arrive
regulars. During the squirmish several were killed. The
raiders retreated., A Tew stragglers were left behind, captured
and tried and sentenced to deatn. Through Clemency of the Crown
was changed to life in prison in a peniteniiary.
During the Fenian raids along Detroit River as mig nt be
expected, excitement was at fever heat, for every civi
prevared and armed to assist the kelitiz upon a moments notice.
014 Veteran Companies, volunteers and civilians nztrolled
every roaé and concession surrounding the towns and villazes along
+the Detroit River. Attacks wers made 21l slong the river, but

with the watc: X

nfuiness of Canadian volunteers, rrevented any
serious attempt to invade the courtry.

Here is a *rue story about "The Fenian 2aid". As Jemina
grace "Collins" Farough, has told it to me., 1I% was in 1866 when
every man was called from the Village of kaidstone Cross Ont. and
the surrounding counitry to help watch along the Detroit River.

Kot a man was lef%t in any of the homes. The women were Irightened
to be left alone.

wr, John Greary a farmer living on his 100 acre farm where

+he vresent Catholic Church is now locazea, decigded 10 zct crazy.
When they would <277 Tim to 6o sonesliang, ke would Just sct eillyl,
39 thg smmosite L2 was tcld <o do, or saj crazy tnings.
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Ope day they gave hime a pail and told him to go fto the river
for water. Ee took the pail, left it at the river, came back with-
out water. So they told him he was no good, he might as well go
kome, which he did. So the women then had a man with them in the

village.

BARLY FORESTS

The Virgin forests of the early 18th ceniury were not like
anything we see in these parts today. The trees were very large
and tall. All we have to do is examine some of the timbers in our
0old harns and houses, pieces of old furniture to appreciate the
width and height of our native trees.

In those early éays so much of the very wvalusbtle timter was
just cut down and burned so as to clear the land to grow grain
and food. Where neighbours were close encugh, they made logging

tees and Lelped each other.

Our ancestors ané early dioneers had to be Jack of all trades--

farmer, veterinery, butcher, hunter, carpenter, <ool mzlisxy, gz,
skognzger, tlacxsaiti, cztinet znd Iurnituremaker.
The wife had to care for herhome and family, be nurse,

ker, soap maker, tailor, spinner of year from the wool

El'l
)
|_l
g
Ho®

own sheec weaver of home snun cloth, milliner, dress-
LaxKer, They DLocaued ererything for their daily needs.
They had only very crude ploughs, wooden harrows, spl
nziled together and weizhted down wiiz 2 large stone
t90 sarve a5 & cérag.

411 they had were little wooden hand rakes and noes, They

=

carried a bag of grain over their shoulders walking up and cdown

the Tields troadcasting the grain by kand, Then harrowing it in
22 caver it., TLs vitered nraip wes cui itk a2 soythe or erzils.,
urenling toey wlacz o o2 Larn floor or ciher hard dry suriace.
ut with a flz2il whicn was two round sticks
d th

o
r ty a lezther thong. IThey then poure
airner to another in the wind, to separate the grzin
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Tre Government suvpplied the early piolneers with small hand

£

mills to grind the grain into flour, or as our grandparents did,
carry & tag of grain on their back through the swamp to Sandwich
to heve it ground by the wind or water mills, carry the flour bvack
home a distance of itwelve to fifteen miles each way.

All ashes were carefully saved and stored in a 4ry place
to make soap, from fat when they butchered. They made their own
syrup and sugar from the sap of our maple trees. It took 12
gallons of sap to make one gallon of syrup.

"heir first wells were a big hole dug in the ground, walled
uo with large stones taken from the land. Big ponds were dug to
water +he stock. At first water was dipped up by means of a pail
on *he end of a rope. Later used 2 pulley. Then pumps were
invented. Later deep artician wells were -bored into the rock 2ad
windmills invented to nump the water to the surface. In tke
19th century gasoline exngines, then eleciric engines. So we

. - . - - 1 . .3 . .= - cm oy e -
TAVE gona_a 10:.;_.-: MRy T0 aazs TNEL'E WOTXXing LOWITE. mar maELY JealT

byt

-

()

w, we have runnizng hot and cold water in our home.

CATEOLIC CEURCH AT FHAIDSTONE CROSS
There has been no record kxept of the exact time tne first

Czatholic log Chaprel was built, but the first records of Baptisms
were registered in Sandwich in 1846, so they feel safe to concluce
it was atout that time it was opened.

Phe first log chapel was built on the north west corner of
the zrossroads, just back a short distance fron wnat it now Xo. 3
Highway. It was forty feet long, twenty-Four fest wide and ten
feet high on the corners, with a pitch roof, surmounted by a
erass. Four or five windows on each side, two windows and a door
on end.

The construction of the church was simple. Ezch family
furnished a given number of logs. A bee was made, the structure
went up in a day or iwo.

fhe first pastor of the parisn was
from 1847 +to 1854, In view of the rapid setilement of the district,

s oda® T Ty - o -
2EVLED i = = 2 :“19

4 - -l

Y]

thelog chapel was suprlanted by a brick church atout seveniy-five

feet long, thrity-six feet wide, twenty-four feet on the corners.
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There were f£ive large windows of roman style on each side, 2
large rose window in the end with doutle swing Joors.

There was & oross six feet high en tor the church. =
~igsion cross Tifteen feet righ in the yerd. This churck was
located seventy-five feet back from the Indian Trail arnd twenty-
five feet from the middle trail. An addition for a vestry was
made by Peter khclaughin. Peter lMcLaughin made the brick for both
the Church and Vesiry, which was erected north of the church.
Material for same came from BEugh lennon's farm, William Kerr
did +the brick work. Behind the church a belfry thizty-five feet
high was erected with a roof over the Dbell.

Ressie l.ooney was appointed organist and directress of the
first choir. Her singers were Philip, Richard and Edward hooney
and big Paddy Mclann.

The Cemetry was laid out iten rods back from the trail that
+ne soldiers blazed through on the Indian Treill.

This Church was used as a place of worship for tweniy-Iive
years, when the 2ishop ordered it closed as a place of worship,
maXing it necessary 1o build tune present church.

Plans began Sor the new church in 1872. Suksoriniionzs Ior

P
deom
o

CZAen
fm i - -

Tze ngw buliding wAs 27. Thes coantract let for fourteen
thousand dollers,

fhe construction was placed in ths nads of ¥Nr. Moore. ThLe

Lvick wes mads on Fugh Lennon's farm, Ignatius and Join Zalford
nauled the gravel From Frith's gravel piv.
Tns corner stone was 12id in 1874, A rew cemelery was

12id out. The grounds Deautified zy planiirg manle and struce
trees around and through the grounds,

A new large rectory was tuilt near the church,

Up to 1937, thixiy-five Priesis have reigned, CThere is a
large dining hall bduilt later, Then a 21g =isver

4 larze school has since been tuilt.
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C.e 21¢ CJansls Southern Razilway btuilt & tranch lire from

=ssex centre tharough Faidstone Cross to Windsor in 188C.

This was just 2 one track line. O01d Engine {o. 56 hauled
2ll the teallast for the Canada Southern Railway in 1880.

The first passenger train run on January 1, 1881. Tne
Pngine pulling it was Number 100. It had a red smoke stack.

The first station was a box car just north west of the
rajlroad at the crossing of the old Indian Trzil at Lzidstone
Cross. The rirst operator in that station was Mr. Arthur Raines.
e later kept 2 store in Essex Centre.

In 1882, The kichigan Central Railwzy came through from
Detroit and built the Canada Southern, into a doutle track line,
This was called the iicnigan Central line.

A new and much larger station was built that same year.

Mr. Jack Xeanedy teing the first station agent for this Iichigan
Jentral line. )
In 1887 Lr. Charles Churchill became station agert in rmaidstone

- Cross. He continued %o be agent until he was pensioned ofl..

when Mr. and Mrs., Charles H. Churchill first came to kazidstone Cross,
they lived $6r three years in the old brick Rectory of the
gatholic Church, It was kMr. Churchill got the firstexpress ‘

In 1867, juss west oI <ihe l.ichigsn Cenirzl Reilway, =2
DL nULTO Tun 3& 111, Ee nzé & very large noms.
In 1887 willier and latthew Orr rected nart of this land

hill bought this land frox kr., Munro.
e remodelled one part of the house for themselves which was a
lovely two story houme with large rooms. He sold the other part
tp r. Jermiah Collins for thier horie. Both homes in good repair
in 1972.

My, Charles Churchill was the son of Daniel and hary inn
urchill, Cenadian Sorn, 3nglish decent. Kkrs. Catharine Churchill

(4]
=y
o

s daughter of Zdward and 2deline kelly, Irish decent.

¥
el
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lL.r. Caurchill learned Telegraphy from James Leich of
Ridgetown. His first jobs were relieving otlher operaiors.
Te served six years at Cornell, was married during this time.
Ee moved to haidstone in 1887, finishing his career there zs
station agent and operator, and for many years was Windsor Star's
Corresponcdent.

0f his 47 years of service with the kichigan Central Railway,
35 years and 5 months were at his post in Maidstone. DNot a
single accident at the crossing. Although a kr. Gilkinson of

Kingsville died in the Depot, after his team of horses ran ur

+he tracks, rather than following the road and was siruck Ty 2

S s
orzanized an © hour day. He said the Miczigan Central Railway
used him first rate. EFe didn't n e
t0 be pensioned.
At one time Maidstone was a busy shipping centre. A great
deal of livestock and grain was handled, as well as ticket service.
An amusing incident heppeneé for a motorist. Eis car

collided with & train, then headed up the tracks ahead of the engine.

The cowcatchere picked up his back wheels, ran along the tracks,
all the way to the first switch. ke wasn't severely hurt, only
vadly scared, altho his car was badly smashed.

lr. and Irs. Churchill were active workers in heaidstone
Mefhodist Church. =zoth were Sunday school teachers for many
years. @rs, Churchill was president of the Ladies £id for
twenty-five years. irs. Churchill was born in 18682, died Xov. 11
1955,

In 1936, the Kichigan Ceatral Station that was tuilt Iin 182

Lodine faw T

in the village was %forn down. IT served &s & sLeilon

raidstone Cross o Windsor (Ornitario on Curistmas o2y 1910 .
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iles To0k over our weay of trexsportation,

i
passenger service on trains was discontinued., 4s in fime was the

Tlectric Rzilway. So buses Decame the next way of travel, I
0

)
ut cars. Tre hard-surfaced highweys tringing in this

CANNING FACTORY 4T FAIDSTOKRE

Ly, David and Sarah Thomas 100k ur land in bsidstcne

ile south of XNo, 3 &

@]
5
)]
03
-
=]
&)
=
D
e
2

ighwey Lisar tlie villzge of
I.zidssone Cross, av the corner of raidstone-Sandwich South
Townline and South Talbot Road. They raised 4 daughters,
izaveth, Laura, Sophronia and Mary. Ons son William E. Thomas.
william grew un, was educated and farmed with Ris Tfather.
e married Grace Ann Parough daughter of John Z. and Jemima C.
"Collins" TFarough. After thier marriage Ym, ané Grace took up
farming on land joining his fathers.
After Wy, David Thomas' death “m. took over the fzrm, hreing
rer. They hzd one daughter Farjorie, and

4]

2 very successual I
two sons Grant E. and Wilbur D. After educating their family,
they too became successful farmers, purchasing more land.

The Thomas Canning "kaidstone" Lt4.

This company was established in the year 12932. As a partner-
ship by Wm. H. Thomazs and his itwo sons CGrant E. Thomas and ¥Wilbur
D. Thomas started as z home canning plant. Each year the volume
0 business increzseé. It tecame necessary to duild za new faciory
end two meore large ware housss.

In the year 1971 over one hundred women znd fifty men were
employed. This year of 1972, they are building another warehouse.
Their Brand name in "Utopia" which is known throught Canada.

L
v

They try to live up *to their Zrand Tlame. Sorme jyezrs 2go 1
£

vecanms & Lizitsd Couperny ané specislize in & nuslisty troluct....
fhoizzs "Utcpia" 2rand Tomatoes, kaidstone Ontario Canada.
The Thomas' have all been leaders in Maidstone United Church
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SCnd0LS
Tae Tirst school was built one mile north of the village on
the Twomy Creek on kr. James kciuliffe's farm.

The seconc scnool was built 2 miles west of the village,
where the old Indian trsil first went through the dense forest.
It was between the village of maldstone Cross and Oldcastle.,
This one was built in 1877, and called the Ragtown School.

The third public school was built in 1891 3/4 of a mile
south of the village on the corner of kalden ané South Talbot
roads. This school was a brick building end had a rlayground of
one acre. 4 row of maple and osk trees were planted around the

outside.
The first trustees were Lr., Charles Collins from England,

our granifather, ir. John Greaves Sr. also from IZngland andé Lr.
1 &
o)

llins, Irelang.

1

he first school teacher was Mr., Jolley. In atout 1%10-11

2 wind storm blew the end of this school in. t was repnlaced Tty

a muchk larger bzick school that same year. It served the cormmunity
nearly 50 years, when it became necessary to build a2 2 room schooal.
The new school was built on ithe south west cornsr of [.zldex znd
Souti Taltet rosds, on gravifazather Ciarles Collins Farn., This
school was named ziter his grandson living on the farm "Tre
Charles Collins" school.

1t was opened in 1658 and closed in 1970, Students then

teken by bus to Essex schools. This two room scrhool has Teen sold
o) ome a Church., The 014 brick school for a2 numier of years

ed for a school for retarded.

TEE TTTEPLOLE SYSTER

Televhone System was installed in Sandwich Soutza

=l
ay
D

Township with office in the wvillage just west of Lr, Ignatius
Zalford's nome., It opened Jan. 1, 1¢10.

The first overator was kiss l.adge 3exton, living in the
village, where the 0ld Bennett home once was., Other operastors
were [hiss Zdizn Collins daughter 97 Ceorge end Mariz Collins
Englizh Decent, our uncle.

I.iss Arn Telisle whose Tather was James Delisle.
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2. 8. Raldl® L GlALET, widow 2f GE’GJ.&E -.::'1‘..4-_", Teraie oneraior

end noved into the village in 1923, She was born Aug. 4, 187¢ in
idstone Township, daughter of Thadius and Sarah "FcHugh" leGuire

She was left a widow with 8 small children to make her own
way in the world.

She held the position of operator of Sandwich South ihuxicipsl
Telephone System, until tihe system was sold to the Bell Televhone
Company on March 30, 1957.

She was very efficient in her position and did so many acts
of kindness for the people of Sandwich South Township.

She was a christiar woman of the Catholic Faith of St. Nary's
Church in the villzazge, wnere she was baptized, married and turied.

ne was also a nmember of ths Caitholic Lezgue, £litar Society and
league of Sacrec LHeart Soclety.

As she so oiten walked to churca to pray, she mignt te reard
to say 'number please'--Glory te to Cod, I'm supposed to be
praying not answering "Number Pleasel,

THE #IRST PROTESTLNT CHURCEES
The first English Church was built of logs in the earlier
part of the 1800, at Oldcastle on the.old Nicholson farm, later
owned ty Stephen Collins of Headley England ir 1835 znd nas
continued in the Collins family until just a few years ago.

m - O J H Fat S . e + [
The St. Stevhern and Redeemer Churches were uili just
~
=

linisters went through the district, holding sexrvices in homes,
where neighbours would gather together to worship, hazve their
cnildren bantized, burial rites or marriage ceremonies periormed.
we have no record of these travelling rministers.

The first lethodist Episcopzl Church was built some years
later, soon after 1850. This was a log chapel, built 3 mile

oT mnaidstone Cross on tane 1ndian Ireil, iha
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There were very few English settlers arournd laidstone as early

2s this. We 4o know that our grandparents, Charles and Elizateth
Collins, Joseph and Mary Parough, were the early Iounders and
pillars of that first log chapel. Charles Collins ané Joseph
Fzrough were men of stirling worth to the cause of truth and

righteousness. They have left us a herizag

[N

1.4 U — ] .
n this community
thet will vaver na>

Ion tae year 1877, the present lelhodist Zpiscopal churcih
was built one mile east of Maidstone Corss. Altho the church
was bBuilt in 1877, the deed of land was not given until 1879,
Composed of lot number 292 on the ncrth side of Taltot Road, in

the Township of »aidstone, Issex Clounty, Ontarioc.

DEELS 0F TANT
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Esssx County numbver 2940
The first trustee's were Chrles Co
Xobvinson, Arthur Wilson and Charle

Signed in *the vreseace of William ;

In 1907 the Trustees of the church were Jokn Zllis, Jonn
Eyland, Thomzz Zllis, 327art Zrylend, CGecrge Eunn, Jaevid ZhnL=s,
Joici Pavasgn, Chomsz Iallins, Charles Sreaves, Foergs Greavss,
Thomas Sreaves, Nicholas Farough, Joseph Farough, and William

Signed--W. D. Eezman.

On Farch 28, 1941, land was again purchased of lot number

291 from ZBetty Vozir for Church property. Trustees William
Thomas, George Ellis, Perry Pomeroy, George Bunn, George Greav es,
Waltar Farough, Charles Farough, Edward EZllis, J. Charles Coll
Witnessed Tty William Thomes.
Signed--Forbes =2, Geddes, K.C.
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_ DEZDS OF TLAID
On June 17, 1950 land was again bought Irom Xdward and
=lizabeth l.c¥ugh, from lot 292, Trustees=--William Thomas, Derry

]

Pomeroy, CGeorge Bunn, Edward Ellis, Walter Farough, J. Charles
Collins, Albert Farough.
ed by William Thomas
Signed-~Fortes Geddes, K.C.

Witness

At the closing of the Wesley Church, the Elford and
North Ridge Cuhurches, Gesto once again joins Maidstone and Zetkrel
as a three point circuit, Rev. Zyland being the Ninister.

In 1670, as we attencded the 23rd &nniversery of iaidstone

TT N = Ml - % - -— 5 £ ] B | T a - i . R
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nited Church, we go once agzin to the listle MWoize liircoa”.
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I% #3821 %esi recoversd ia wilte =stestss slling 1n 1TS

s the Ontario Governmment presenteé a placue in

ey

¢
recognition of ¢3 yeers of Christian Service to the Commurity of
the haidstone United Church.

Walter Farough, an elder in the church of long standing,
received the plaque, from Rev., W. Hyland in a briel dedication
ceremony.

In 1971 the congre

participation in the 9%

gation filled the churex for their
th inniversary Service conducted by
treir inister, Rev., E., W. Wonfor,

The men who zwurng the broad axe have been 2 7
lznd., The hapoy contented Christian i.o
ildren, taught them to love God, =taught us how T
erous neighbours, *to lend 2 helping hand to all inn
taught us how to pray, and have failth and trustv in God.

[{H)

m o
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What do we owe to these who toiled long years,
That we might comfort xnow.,
Gzve of their test, their brain, their Ttrawn
Treir smiles end tears,
Thet homes in peace might grow.
we owe them more than we can e'er revay.

AR

“e can btut 4o our test,

-~
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T5 cerry on tiae work they rnanded down,
hay we too stend <he test.

In 1951 land was purchased <rom lot 291 from RBetty Vozir.
Trustees--%William Thomas, Perry Pomeroy, Gesorge 2unn, Edward
Tllis, Walter Farough, Albert Farough, J. lharles Collixs,

Vitnessed--illiaxm Thomas

Iq,j

Signed--Forhes =, Geddes, K.C.
Pefore 1890, Cesto joined Maidstone as & two charge circuit.
I can recall Jemima Collins Farough telling of goinzg over to
Gesto sometimes to special services, but before 1900. Two
circuits were made, the North Ridge and Elford Churches

LN
O

with Gesto to form a circuics,

Wnile churches at Bethel and Wesley joined with haldstone to
form 2 three Church circuit.

The first Trustees of the Maidstone l.ethodist Church were
Rotert Little, Charles Collins of England, William Kobinson,
Charles Bunn and Arthur Wilson

The first oecretar"l¢reasure“ was John (Greaves Sr.

Trhe first Organist was lary Greernaway.

All through the yezrs that have focllowed, the decencants
of our ancestors have continued Yo help to carry on the work in
the church and community, that the early piloneers Tegan, in 2

o

new country that wzs dense fore
ke

From 1857 this ¢ 3
lit*le white church of MNaidstore Cross.

Tn 104C it was completely changed whexn it was covered with
iraul »rick, many of us had a feelirng of sadness, not o see is
25 *the litzle white church of l.aidsione.

To zzolizr faye when telifztone Tmited Thurel Tecsne g oclireul

. - Fe et k! .
iarge,. Later the 0ld Rcbert
- ke Fn —p - n T e e v il L i . L) .
itile nome was bought zcross Teitov Adad Irom the railsticne Church
-0r ihe ahse.
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L zew eniry room was Duilt on the ochureh. 4 chioir lofr witn
Lagement wes also added. 4 beautiful memorizsl window was dlaced
ir this new part, dedicated to the Pounders of the Chuxrch. The
Sanctuary was re-decorated, new pews and furnishing donated as
Memorieals., -

In this church community, there is 2 history, if
been recorded, would be interesting indeed, and would
with a religion of gratitude. It is the history of the vioneer
in 211 his liaes.

Tre monument of that history is this community, in which we
23 decendants live and have Tteen a part in carrying on what our

Pisneer Ancestors tegan.

-

ur Ancestors came to Faidstone Cross as piineers %o build.

They came to build and building & mighiy structure grew

And ever 2s we builded, builded better that we knew, .

And through the darkening wilderness, Lo!

We were led in migavw,

Our log heaps made a smoke by day,

A zillowed flate by night,

Now, when across the Continent,

We've seen our +taskx expand,

To our Childrens chkildren,

chiildrens children,
]

e
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